SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 30, 2017
9:05 a.m

9:05: 23 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Peter M cciche

ALSO PRESENT

Kris Curtis, Legislative Auditor, Alaska Division of
Legi slative Audit; Senator Gary Stevens.

SUMVARY

APRESENTATI ON: AUDI T and ACCOUNTI NG CONSI DERATI ONS

9: 06: 28 AM

KRI'S CURTI S, LEGQ SLATI VE AUDI TOR, ALASKA DIVISION OF
LEG SLATIVE AUDI T, shared that the Division of Legislative
Audit had been asked by the commttee to report on any
inportant findings from over the past several years that
could help inform budget discussions over the next severa

nmont hs. She relayed that the division conducted performance
audits and sunset reviews that canme before the |egislature,
as well as being the independent audi t or of t he
| egislature's financial statements and the federal audit of
federal funds.

9: 06: 55 AM




Co- Chair MacKi nnon recognized Senator Stevens in the
gal l ery.

9:07:10 AM

Ms. Curtis focused on finding from the financial and
federal conpliance audits. She said that the nbst recent
audit conpleted was for FY 15. She revealed that the audit
had been markedly different from previous years; typically,
the division had 3 to 5 financial recomendations, but in
FY 15, the division had 15 recommendati ons. She stated that
the recommendations stemmed primarily from the roll out of
the new state Integrated Resource Information System
(I1RI'S), and because of the new accounting standard set by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which
dictates how to report pension activity. She discussed the
i npl ementation of IRS, which had gone live in July 2015

She relayed that the inpact the system had on the FY 15
financial reporting had been unexpected. She explai ned that
IRIS was nore conplex than the 30-year-old |egacy system
that it had replaced. She said that state departnents had
work for several years to reevaluate their functions and
develop new business rules for the system which has
several nodules; the system is the financial accounting
system book of record, but also has a procurenent conponent
t hat al | ons pr ocur enent transacti ons to interface
automatically, a debt tracking nodule, and a payrol

nmodul e. She noted that the payroll nodule had gone |live one
week ago. She said that her conments would be strictly to
the financial roll out and not payroll. She stated that, in
general, the financial roll out had gone well, nuch better
than the roll out of the new Medicaid system which had
been a conplete failure. She related that there were a
significant nunber of problems wth the system but that
vendors had been paid. She highlighted that certain
departnents had struggled nore than others with the change,
nost notably the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOT). She said that the division had worked
with departnments to identify and correct problens. She
believed that the nmain problem was wth the reporting
package that reports from the information from the
financial system She explained that the information from
the financial system was put in a data warehouse and a
separate software reporting package reported from the
system She said that the upgrade to the reporting package
had added thousands of elenents to the possible reports,
which had resulted in a struggle for the division and state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/30/17 9:05 A M



departments in naking their reports accurate. She shared
that the division had witten three recomendations to
correct conversion problens. The first two had been to DOT,
whi ch  had been found to have problens recordi ng
expendi tures and associated revenues in the wong fiscal
year, this resulted in an audit adjustnment of approximately
$40 mllion, and another adjustnment for earned and unbilled
revenue of approximately $21.6 million. She stated that
another DOT/IRS conversion error that had led to $153
mllion of unrecorded revenue, and had been correctd4ed via
an audit adjustnent. She said that a recommendation had
been witten to the Departnent of Administration (DOA) for
several errors. She relayed that DOA had booked sone
transactions in the old systemto help with the conversion
to the new system but then inappropriately pick those up,
resulting in an error of $103.6 mllion of overstated
recei vabl es and under st at ed expenses.

9:11: 50 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about the failed Medicaid roll out.

Ms. Curtis replied that the roll out of the state's new
Medi caid system in 2013 had been a failure. She explained
t hat vendors had not been paid, which had led to litigation
with Xerox that was ongoing. She relayed that further
updat es woul d be given about the Medicaid issue.

9:12:32 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop queried that archival process of IR'S,
and asked whether procurenent data would be chronicled by
depart nment.

Ms. Curtis replied that the current archival process
mai ntained information for a set nunber of vyears. She
shared that departnents would be able to scan and attach
using IRI'S; support for their transactions was part of the
system She said that support for transactions would be
accessi ble electronically.

9:13:40 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop understood that |egislative requests for
information would be processed nore efficiently, but that
docunents retrospective to IRIS would be remain in hard

copy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/30/17 9:05 A M



Ms. Curtis responded that if the sought for information had
been captured through accounting transactions of vendor,
anpunt, or year, it wuld be in the data warehouse, which
went back to FY 07. Mre informative invoice information
woul d be on hard copy and woul d eventual |y be shredded.

9:14: 41 AM

Co-Chair MucKi nnon noted that the Mdicaid roll out had
been such a failure that it could not be audited, which was
of great inconvenience to the state.

Ms. Curtis responded that the division qualified its
opinion in FY 14, due to the inability to obtain evidence
regardi ng the Medicaid system which was so inoperable that
it could not be audited. She said that in FY 15 the
division had noticed inprovenents in the system She said
that the department had settled litigation with Xerox in
Sept enber 2016. She noted that the contract the state held
with Xerox was up for termnation in Septenber of 2017,
whi ch begged the question of the state's plan for the
contract term nation.

9:16: 37 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon |anmented that the department had been
stressed by the inability of the systemto perform and had
had difficulty answering audit questions and providing
information to the |egislature.

Ms. Curtis responded that there was sone audit work done in
FY 15 on the Medicaid roll out, out of concern for the
defect resolution process. She said that there were three
different types of defect resolution processes. She related
that one type of process was being reviewed and approved by
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS);
however, the division had found errors in the other two
processes, with the underlaying issue remaining unresolved.
She said that in sone instances the defect had been fixed,
but a mass adjustnment was not processed to fix the clains
that had been inpacted by the defect. She shared that in
one instance a nmass adjustnment had been closed because of
an existing duplicate, but the duplicate had not contained
all the clains of the original mass adjustnent. She said
that it had been determ ned that the things done to fix the
defects were not working |ike they should. She stated that
managenent at DHSS had stated that they planned to review

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/30/17 9:05 A M



all the manual fixes before the federal oversight agency
come into certify the system She divulged that there had
been over 5,300 manual fixes needed and the division
doubted that the departnment had the resources to tend to
each defect. She believed that there had been a risk
present at the end of FY 15.

9:19:54 AM

Senator Dunl eavy asked whether the state had failure to
performclauses in their contracts wth Xerox.

Ms. Curtis replied that there had been plenty of basis for
l[itigation, and that the litigation had resulted in a
settl enent.

9: 20: 44 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy stated that his conversations with doctors
had led himto believe that they did not expect to be paid
in full for their services. He furthered that sone of them
anticipated $.30 on the dollar, which led him to believe
that the system had been built around apparent flaws. He
said that dealing with inefficiencies was a cost driver. He
hoped for a deeper discussion of the issue.

9:22: 01 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that further discussion wth
DHSS concerning Medicaid was on the agenda for a future
meet i ng.

9:23: 00 AM

Senator O son wondered whether the public had been harned
due to the Xerox systemfailure.

Ms. Curtis replied that she could not specifically address
the question. She said that she did know that the state had
advanced funds to health care providers and vendors to
avoid a cash fl ow probl em

9:24:11 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon thought that the conversation about
advanced funds and cost recovery should be had with the
DHSS conm ssi oner .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/30/17 9:05 A M



9:25:17 AM

Ms. Curtis discussed the inpact of the IRIS inplenentation.
She shared that she had alerted the adm nistration to and
| egislative |eadership that there would nost likely be a
significant delay in audited financial statenents. She said
that the auditing of draft financial statenents was 13
weeks late. She clarified that the audit was not stagnant;
there was plenty of audit work that could be done w thout
the draft financial statement. She said that the hope woul d
be that the division would receive them soon, at which tine
it would take approximately 2.5 nonths. She |amented that
it usually took the division 6 weeks to conplete the
process, but that there had been so many adjustnents to
correct that would each need to be scrutinized. She shared
that in 2016, the division saw 60 audited adjustnments, and
expected a simlar case in 2017. She stated that she
expected the draft financial statements by md-April, which
nmeant that the final, audited anobunt in the state's savings
account would not be known until after April.

9:27:10 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon shared that none of the information
supplied in today's neeting had been a surprise, and that
the state had been follow ng what had happened with Xerox
i npl enentation in Colorado, in conparison to the State of
Al aska. She said that a finding was expected in the audit
that related to the deficiencies of IR S.

Ms. Curtis relayed that the results of the audit were
unknown because it had yet to be conpleted. She said that
the division anticipated the normal processes of bringing
on a conplex system She offered that the first year of
financial reporting would be difficult, not as the result
of a specific deficiency, but because of the |earning
curve.

9:27:29 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon interjected that the division had
notified the commttee of the auditing delay, which was not
wi t hout consequences on the federal |evel.

Ms. Curtis replied that the repercussions from the

statewide single audit from the federal perspective was
that now the state would be considered a high-risk auditee,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/30/17 9:05 A M



which would result in higher audit coverage. She furthered
that because of the rules for calculating najor federal
prograns the designation would have little inpact on the
nunber of federal prograns the state could choose from but
that the designation would stand. She added that each
federal agency would nmake the decision about what to do
when the single audit was not received on-tine.

9: 28: 37 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon shared that the division was working
diligently to keep the state in good standing while the new
system was i npl enent ed.

Ms. Curtis replied that the job of the division was to
identify things that did not work. She opined that she
rarely had the opportunity to offer positive coments about
state departnents, she stressed that the legislative and
adm nistrative staff that she worked with was professiona
and hardworking. She said that the fact that the statenents
were late should not be a reflection on the conpetency or
dedi cation of said staff.

9:31:48 AM

Ms. Curtis continued that Governnental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) 68, was a new requirenment on how pension plan
participants recognized the liability of their portion of
future pension benefits that were unfunded, and other
pension activity. She said that all the people of the state
involved in Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS) and
the Teacher's Retirement System (TRS) had to report their
portion of the unfunded net pension liability on their
respective financial statenents. She said that for the
first-tine allocation schedules had to be created that
allocated the net pension liability out to participants,
and those statenments had to be audited by an independent
entity. She shared that there was a special aspect of GASB-
68, called "Special Funding", which said that if an entity
was legally required to contribute to a pension plan on
behalf of another entity, they would be considered a
"special funder" and nust take on the unfunded liability
proportionate to their extra contribution. She noted that
there was a statute that required the state to contribute
on behal f of planned participants. She said that regardl ess
of the statute, the executive branch argued in FY 15 that a
special funding situation did not apply because of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/30/17 9:05 A M



constitutional prohibition against dedicating revenue, and
the requirenment that one legislature could not bind future
| egi sl atures. She stated that GASB then canme out wth
authoritative guidance that said that a statute on the
books was enough to denonstrate |egal obligation, and the
bi nding of future legislatures did not matter - the funding
woul d still be considered special funding. She relayed that
t he executive branch had a | egal opinion drafted to support
their argunent, which had not been convincing, and the
di vision subsequently received draft funding statenents
that had not included special funding for FY 15. She said
that after corrections the audit was eventually posted. She
shared that the state brought on $2.4 billion in unfunded
net pension liability for their own share as an enployer,
and an additional $3.6 billion for the special funding
situation, a total of $6 billion in FY 15. She said that
the total was reflected on the state's governnent-w de
statenent, which did not inpact the general fund bal ance or
the anmount in the savings account, but was an accounting
rule neant to foster transparency. She warned that in two
years, the O her Post-Enploynment Benefits (OPEB) obligation
woul d need to be brought onto the books.

9:35: 50 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that state statue set a funding
rate to create stability for PERS and TRS pension
contributions from smaller communities and school districts
t hroughout the state. She relayed that the limt for PERS
was set at 22 percent, and anything above the 22 percent
woul d be funded by the state. She furthered that the rate
for TRS was 12.5 percent, and anything above 12.5 would be
paid by the state. She argued that because of the base
student allocation (BSA) the state typically engaged in
supporting a large percentage of TRS unfunded liability.
She continued that GASB-68 was now instructing that the
liability above t he chosen per cent ages shoul d be
transferred to the state.

Ms. Curtis clarified that prior to FY 15,  no one was
required to put the liability on the books; GASB-68 neant
that for the first tine, the unfunded net pension liability
had to be reflected on the books. She noted that the

statute stated "shall", and if the statute said "may" it
woul d not be special funding; however, the school districts
and municipalities would have to book the liability on

their own books.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/30/17 9:05 A M



9:38:37 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon suggested that the commttee review the
Debt Affordability Analysis distributed by the Departnent
of Revenue's treasury division. She said that the ability
for the state to bond anything was being |everaged by the
unfunded liability, which affected the debt Iliability
scenario. She lamented that the state's capability to
borrow had been reduced from $250 million over the next ten
years, to between $50 and $175 million. She said that the
debt anal ysis would be discussed further later in the week.

9:40: 07 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy requested a neeting with |egislative |egal
and | egislative finance divisions to discuss the concept of
l[imting the actions of future |egislators.

9:41: 27 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought that the conversation could be
fruitful. She understood that the |egislature could change
state statue. She asked when GASB-68 had passed the
accounting board, and whether it had been a direct
reflection of the state chall enge.

Ms. Curtis responded that GASB-68 had been issued several
years before it was effective. She said that hearing other
states address GASB at national conferences had reveal ed
that many states were opposed to the conplexity of the
statenent and wanted nore tinme to inplenment the statenent.
She believed that not binding future |egislators had been
| anguage specific to Al aska. She said that one special
aspect if GASB-68 were the allocation schedules, which
impacted all the participants, and had not been issued
unti | the end of Novenber  2015. The division had
recoomended that the allocation schedule be released
earlier; this year it was late, but not as |ate.

9:45:17 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that pensions would be discussed
further in the week.

Ms. Curtis relayed that the division was working with the

division of finance to make sure that the statenents were
accurate. She said that errors had been found in the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/30/17 9:05 A M



Statutory and Constitutional Budget Reserve Funds (SBR
CBR), and the anounts reported in those funds. She stated
that DOR had struggled in FY14 and FY15 to nmake sure the
corporate income tax and oil and gas production tax
receipts went into the CBR She related that adjustnents
total ed approximately $32.4 million. She furthered that DOA
had struggled with correctly reporting activity related to

those funds, which had resulted in $3 billion adjustnent
for the funding fromthe one-tine transfer of CBR funds to
pension plans. She stated that a $5.4 nillion adjustnent

had been nade to fix a formula error in their spreadsheet
related to the transfer from the SBR to the General Fund.
She continued that a $6.9 billion adjustnment related to
investnment activity reporting between accounts within the
CBR.

9:46: 54 AM

Ms. Curtis comented on the CGovernor's vetoing of the oi
tax credits. She stressed that there was still an
obligation to pay them She suggested that the credits
could have their own row on the state's financial statenent
so that it didn't get buried within something else. She
admtted that vetoing the credits reduced the draw fromthe
CBR, but stressed that it was still a liability and would
be reported in the statenents.

9:47: 46 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman queried the process of giving the credits
their owmn line itemon the spreadsheet.

Ms. Curtis replied that materiality of the nunbers would
necessitate a dedicated row on the spreadsheet.

Co-Chair Hoffman wunderstood that no legislative action
woul d be required.

Ms. Curtis replied no.

9:48:17 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop argued that the deferred maintenance
schedul e should have its own |ine.

Ms. Curtis replied that the schedule would have to be
nmeasur abl e and qual i fy under GASB.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 01/30/17 9:05 A M



9:48: 49 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop believed that it was an issue of prudent
bookkeeping. pointing out that private sector business
carried deferred mai ntenance as an individual line item

9:49: 23 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought that there had been a ruling
from GASB on deferred maintenance, specifically on road
proj ect s.

Ms. Curtis explained that there was guidance on deferred
mai nt enance and other types of liabilities, and how to
report capital assets. She thought that GASB-34 had brought
infrastructure on the books, but that she couldn't offer a
speci fic exanpl e of deferred maintenance.

9:50: 12 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop highlighted that in tines of economc
stability the legislature increased the Capital Budget to
pay for deferred mai ntenance.

9:51: 36 AM

Ms. Curtis revealed that the division had found that in
FY15, sone of the funds deposited in the National Petroleum
Reserve Fund (NPR) had not been granted out to inpacted
communities as required by law. She explained that the
funds nust be wused by the state for construction,
mai nt enance, and operation of essential public facilities -
giving priority to municipalities nost directly inpacted by
oil and gas developnent. She furthered that the |aw
dictated that it was the intent of the |egislature that
each year all the NPR funds would be available for inpact
mtigation grants. She said that the fund had received $6.7
mllion of revenue, but due to m scomunication and timng
of receipts, the full available funding had been unknown.
She said that the state received application for
approximately $8.5 million for grants in FY1l5, but that the
departnent had believed that only $4 nllion had been
avai lable to grant out. She said that this had resulted in
$2.8 mllion left in the fund at the end of the year, which
under statute were to be given to the Al aska Permanent Fund
and the Public School Fund. She stated that the funds that
should have been available for the inpact grants was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 01/30/17 9:05 A M



transferred to the Alaska Permanent Fund and the Public
School Fund. She said that the division had recomended
that work should be done with DOL to regrant the funds, and
to change procedure to make sure it did not happen again in
t he future.

9:54: 06 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the timng issue of
under st andi ng what had been in the NPR fund had led to the
i nproper di sbursenent of noney.

Ms. Curtis replied that the extra $2.8 mllion had been
received in March of that fiscal year, and that rather than
seeking a suppl enental appropriation, which was required by
| aw, there had been a communi cation breakdown that required
corrective action. She said that reporting procedures had
since been put into place, as well as changing the nature
of the appropriation to allow excess receipts to carry
forward

9:55:17 AM

Ms. Curtis spoke to the topic of shortfalls. She shared
that FY15 had not included recomendations regarding
shortfalls because the new accounting system was unable to
generate reports that identified potential shortfalls.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed housekeepi ng.
#

ADJ OURNIVENT
9:57: 02 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:57 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 01/30/17 9:05 A M



